


REFLECTIONS
ON QUALITY

"The architectural finn of
Stevens, Mallory, Pearl &: Campbell

has contributed greatly to the
success of Summit Construction.
They set a standard of excellence

in all aspects of their involvement.
Their professionalism and

attention to detail are
consistently reflected in the

superior qua lity of their work:'

- Tony Thomas
President, Sum mit Construc tion

SU ITcrnSfRlCID'J
Albuquerque. New Mexico

505 /842-8113
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In this issue:
A major look at one of New Mexico 's

prestigious architectural f irms,
Stevens, Mallory , Pearl & Campbell. The
article has been researched and written
by Paul J. Suozzi, President of Albu­
querque Arts All iance . Paul received a
BA In Eng lish /F in e Arts fr om
Georgetown University, a MA in
American Art and Architecture from
SUNY, Buffa lo, N.Y. and his PhD in
Adult Education from the University of
New Mexico.

Also in this issue Is an art icle by Art
Historian Mary Grizzard which gives a
brief history of Spanish colonial ar­
chitecture In New Mexico , in the con­
text of the U.S. Southwest. Dr. Grizzard
is Ass ista nt Professor of Art History at
the University of New Mexico in the
Department of Art and Art History. Her
spec ialty Is latin American Art History
from the time of the arrival of the
Spaniards until the present. This past
summer she gave lectures on the sub­
ject In Mexico at the Nat ional
Autonomous University, and in the
Domin ican Republic for the USIA. Her
book , Spanish Colonial Art and Ar·
chltecture of Mexico and the U.S.
Southwest has just been completed for
Universit y Press of America.
o 0 0 0

The cover of th is issue , the Main
Branch of the Albuquerque Public
Library , is being sponsored by the ar­
chitectural fi rm of Stevens, Mallory ,
Pearl & Campbell, who were responsi­
ble for its design. We are very grateful
for their con tri buti on. The General Con­
tractor for the Library build ing was
George A. Ruthe rford , Inc. Mr. Ruther­
ford formed his constructi on fi rm in
1945. In 1975 his employ ees bought the
company from Rutherford and formed
the Summit Construct ion Company,
Inc. Mr. Ruther ford serves as Chairman
of the Board of Summit Construct ion.
o 0 0 0

It has come to our atte ntion that
A/buquerque Living magazine is to have
a " home living" sectio n In the March
Issue. We look forward to seeing it.
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Stevens, Mallory, Pearl and Campbell, Architects
We have enjoyed the working relationship

with your firm the past "fifty" years
and look forward to the next

"fifty"
CONGRATULATIONS

(505) 247-2446
P.O . Box 311 MECHANICA L CONTRACTORS

COMMERC IA L AN D INDUSTRIAL
DESIGN / CONSTRUCT

721 14t h Street . SW
Albuquerque. NM 87103

DON J.
CUMMINGS

Al Gillespie
General Contractor

is now

South
:::=:::::~ Sun

~ -....J,....La.I Products
We are the stocking distrihutor

to contractors of

Andersen®
Windowalls®

Windows-Patio Doors

Natural ite Skylights • Jam..'()Greenhouses

843-7899
131312th Street NW

Albuquerque, New Mexico 117104
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KOHLER.
Theb dl ksels.

the broadest color range in
the industry. Kohler takes you
from colors that stir the senses
to colors that soothe the spirit.
And this year, with the new

Kohler Color Coordinates
Program you can mix and
match colors to please your
customers' tastes, or your
own.

Kohler distributors inmajor
markets insure fast delivery.
And you know when you use
Kohler, you use the best.

Let the bold lookdo your
selling for
you. Depend
on Kohler.
For more
information,
just contact
your nearest

Kohler dealeror distributor or
write to: Kohler Co., Dept.
RLN, Kohler, Wisconsin
53044.

marketing support helps you.
Kohler presents the most

aggressive and visible print
and television advertising in
the industry. So your
customers know and respect
the Kohler name. And they
learn to associate thatname­
and yours-with quality.

Thatquality is reflected in

It sells for you because Kohler
is fundamentally bold in
design, bold in varietyand
bold in quality.
And the
philosophy of
the bold look
goes further
than our fixtures. It is also the
basis of how Kohler's

THE BOLD LOOK
OF KOHLER

T5048Copyright 1985Kohler Co.
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1000 Siler Park Road· Santa Fe, N.M.· Phone: 471-1811

PLUMBING SUPPLY

1500 Candelaria N.E.· Albuquerque, N.M.· Phone: 345-8587



1808 2nd Street, Suite "l"
Santa Fe. New Mexico 87501
'telephone: (505) 982-2732

R4 WINDOWS

3800 Hawkins Street N.E.
Albuquerque. New Mexico 87109
Telephone: (505) 345-2671

The difference is Heat Mir- Come see America's most
rorn

, transparent insulation beautiful wood window- Hurd.
built into Hurd aluminum-clad Come feel the difference that
wood windows and patio doors. makes it twice as efficient as a
Youcan't see it. butyou canfeel standard double pane window.
it work. Heat Mirror reflects Our demonstration is proof.
escaping heat back into your Your energy bill will be the
home inwinter; rejectsinvading payoff. Youdeserve to be Hurd.
heat in summer. fSl:>n.

Cfor t uqa ,<me,

FEEL THE DIFFERENCE.

NO REFURBISHINGI
ASK FOR COST COMPARISONS

AND CASE HISTORIES . . .

EXTERIOR WALLS
w ith Initial savings that grow w it h age!

:;'''11. r.®The only glazed block
Aiifdli!li6f!i~~~i!i!i!!irr.uwith more than 3 dec­

ades of proven performance.
Permanent, sanitary glazed

PRE-FACED finish. Practically no malnten­
CONCRETE ance. Energy & Insurance sav-

MASONRY UNITS ings too. Meets Gov't specs.
Wide range of color, texture,
form, scale & pattern. ® 4.4
Bu in SWEErS.

BUILD INTERIOR s,

FEATHERUT£ BUILDING PRODUCTS CORP.,
Box 489, Lubbock, IX 79408 806 /763-8202

FEATHERUT£ BUILDING PRODUCTS, BOl 9977, EI Paso, IX 79990 915 /859-9171
CREGO BLOCK CO., INC., 6026 2nd Sl NW, Albuquerque, NIlI 87107 505 /345-4451
BUILDERS BLOCK, 8011633, Roswell, NIlI 88201 505 /622·1321
BUILDERS BLOCK, Drawer FF, Las Cruces, NIlI 88001 505 /525-3633

Custom Milling and Hardware.

Stairway Components. Adhesives.
and Ab rasives.

You'veagonizedovertheconcept,sweatedout theplans,
nowit's timeforthecompliments.Andwhenyouspecify
Bigelowunderfoot,youknow therugwon't bepulledout
fromunderyou.WecansupplyandinstalltheBigelow
carpet tocomplementyourplans!

caW a mer Ican 812 Central Avenue, SW
bus I n e S S Albuquerque. New Mexico 87102
i n t e r io r S (505) 883-2055

In Fac t - Over 800 Items in Stock
for High Quality. Arch itectural.
Cabinet. Furniture. and Finish Work!

Alder. Ash. Basswood. Birch.
Aromatic Cedar. Spanish Cedar.
Cherry. Honduras Mahogany.
Phillipine Mahogany. Map le. Red
Oak. White Oak. Ponderosa Pine.
Sugar Pine. Poplar. Sassafras.
Walnut. and Willow.

(505 ) 345-8135

New Mexico Toll Free:
! 1-800-432-6820

IOutside New Mexico Toll Free:
I 1-800-545-6104

@If.::,! I
~.~f.,·~~~

~~.: KITTS ENTERPRISES INC.
""-.... ," 5815EDITH BOULEVARD. NE

f ~.." ALBUQUERQUE. NM 87125fi,,,

r~~ ",
. ~: , ~~ .....

.'1,1."" ,
'.
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EWI DOW THAT'S
1551 G E

Although the sash in many old
windcms are worn out, the frames
and trim are often in good
condition. So we designed a kit
that lets people replace only the
sash. And seve money.

The E-Z Tilt Pac includes too
energy-efficient wood sash and all

Comes complete with instructionsand easy
to install, easy to operate hardware.

the hanfware needed to install
them.

The sash are made of the same
fine-grained Ponderosa pine as the
rest of our line.

Double glazing and high quality
weatherstripping provide the energy
efficiency needed today, while the

E-ITILT •

beauty of wood and options like
authentic divided lites let the beauty
of yesterday be retained.

Both sash tilt into the room far
easy cleaning. And the E-Z Tilt Pac
installs quickly with simple, easy
to fallON instructions. So you sae
on installation costs, too.

E-Z ....... L ...... p~c::::.

Snap in jamb liners help
make installation quick and easy.

' .....pl_c ........... 't. S .. . h & , ......... _O't c:»_.
Alarri~

HI.7.ndoHl's

Excellent
weatherstripping
on jamb liners
and sashoffers
protection against

drafts and
energy loss.

Insulating glassprovides up-to-date
energy efficiency.

OPTIONS: Sash lift in statuary bronze/Alpinecombination storm sash and screen/Rectangular grids/Screen, aluminum surround in whiteor brONn/BrONn jamb

hardware GLAZING OPTIONS: (II, insulating glass is standardl/Singleglazing/Single glazing with remCMlble energy panel/Authentic divided lites, single glazing/Authentic

divided lites, single glazing with remCMlble energy panel/Authentic divided lites, insulating glass/Solar bronze glass/Solar gray glass PREFINISH OPTIONS: (Barev.ood is

standardl/Exterior prime/Exterior prefinish-XL-72 {Whitel/XL·82 (Bahama brONnl/XL-92 (Pebble gray)/lnterior prime



NMA NEWS
REGISTRATION OF
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

STUDY OF OUTDOOR RECREATION FOR THE DISABLED
WINS AWARD IN NATIONAL COMPETITION

USE OF DIR ECTIONAL AND IDENTI FICATION SIGNS

January - February 1986 /7

INFORMATION SYSTEM ILLUSTRATIONS m
LEVEL I

Oe, cr! ptive Inform.tio
.bout , ite

~
Direction.! ' 19M to
fecilitiu . t p.rktll9
. ree

a Direction al Sign

~ Desi gna ti on of Accessibil it y

~ Fis hing Fa cil ity

IXI Picn ic Are a

~ Camp site

II] Rest Room

If] Parking

[!] Descr tptlve Information
....._........ .-_...,

the site, in order to maximize the
varieties of experiences available to their
users. (See illustration below. )

Th e jury applauded the wide ap­
plicabilit y of the research findin gs and
recommendations, which go well beyond
conventional accessibility standards, and
the organization of those findings into a
handbook that can be used easily by han­
dicapped people as well as by design pro­
fessionals.

The presentation of the award will
take place at the 33rd Annual PIA
Awards luncheon on Friday, January 24,
at the Plaza Hotel in New York. Th e
seventeen winning projects were selected
from 832 entries by a panel of eight ar­
chitectural professiona ls.

Direction.1 '19M ~
at ro.d Inter -
sectlera ~

Richard S. Nordhaus and Min Kan­
trowit z, who head research firms in
Albuquerque, New Mexico, and William
J . Siembieda, a professor at the Universi­
ty of New Mexico's School of Archit ecture
and Plann ing, have won an award in the
33rd Annual PIA Awards Program , spon­
sored by Progressive Architecture
magazine, for their handbook on makin g
outdoor recreati onal sites more accessible
to the disabled.

After studying a variety of outdoor
recreat ion sites and interviewing people
with a ran ge of physical disabili ties, the
researchers developed the concept of
"levels of accessibility", a flexible ap­
proach to defining difficulty or ease of
access according to the characteristics of

ARCHITECTURAL STUDY
TOUR TO JAPAN PLANNED

The College and University Par tnership
Program (CUPP) is sponsoring a two
week study tour of Japan. The dat es are
May 13 to 27, 1986. The itinerary will
start with a visit to the ancient city of
Kyoto and move on to the city of Kofu
where the Communications Center by
Kenzo Tan ge will be visited. Buildings by
leadin g contemporary Japanese architects
are to be visited in and around the Tokyo
area. If significant interest is expressed,
there will be the optio n for a visit to
Hong Kong on the return flight at
minimal additional cost.

The tour is open to all people in the
design and construc tion industry. The
trip from Kyoto will be made by means
of the high speed bullet train . In Kyoto
tour members will spend two days in the
home of a Japanese family.

The cost of the trip is $1,700.00 per
person based on doubl e occupancy with
departure from Los Angeles via
Singapore Airlines. Items not included in
the fee are meals and local transport a­
tion. Th e group will be limited to twenty
participants. Steven Kells, 243-2724 is
coordinator for the tour. Please contac t
him for further information. The
deadline for makin g the $200.00 deposit
for the trip is March 15, 1986.

News continue d on pa ge 25

Pursuant to the Landscape Architects
Act of 1985, and the rules and regula­
tions adopted thereunder, the New Mex­
ico Board of Landscape Archit ects will
accept applications for registration of
Landscape Architects without examina­
tion until June 13, 1986. Effective
September 14, 1986, persons shall be pro­
hibited from practicing as Landscape Ar­
chitects and from representing themselves
as Landscape Architects in New Mexico
unless registered pursuant to the Land­
scape Architects Act and the rules and
regulations adopted thereunder. An ap­
plication form , including copies of the
Landscape Architects Act the board's
rules and regulations, and other pertinent
information may be obtained by writing
the Administrator, ew Mexico Board of
Landscape Architects, P.O. Drawer
1388, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-1388;
Telephone No. (505) 827-3960. Ap­
plicant s should be prepared to meet with
the board to review their completed ap­
plications.
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DISTRIBUTORS FOR THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
WAREHOUSED IN ALBUQUERQUE

CREGO BLOCK CO.
P.O. BOX 8.8 8028l1ECONO BTAUT, N.W.
ALBU UERQUE,N.M.87187 (!lO!l)~!l1

1@l!1-© @@oo\
•



PROJECTS
FAR NORTHEAST HEIGHTS SENIOR CENTER
FOR THE CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE

After extensive programm­
ing, the Archit ect sought to
design an environment that
would get the users as "in­
volved" as possible. Th e
building seeks to provide a
modern , positive image of the
elderly. The 13,680 square
feet of space emp loys.passive
solar energy in the form of
south facing windows and
clerestories and solar mass
walls. A unique and very
desirable element of the
design is the 2,000 square

. foot Elderly Day Care Facili­
ty which keeps many citizens
out of nursing homes.

ELEVATIONS

~~': .;.. !'I, ~-- ---+-.-'-t--- _ _
FLOOR 'PLAN
13.680 SQ . FT.

I i
, I,

ARCHITECTS:
BARKER/BOL & ASSOCIATES
ALBUQUERQUE, N.M. EAST

" . ~
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Reduce Your Energy Bills
20% to 40%

with

CO-GENERATION
Generate Your Own Electricity.

Use the Waste Heat to Make Steam and Hot Water.

Economic Analysis • Manufacturing
Project Development • System Management

Hot Water
and/or Steam

TYPICAL
ENGINE-GENERATOR

CO·GENERATION SYSTEM

Electricity

COGENERATION DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A DIVISION OF SANDIA DETROIT DIESEL)

2929 Vassar NE
Albuquerque, NM 87107

(505) 881·3511

For Syste m Analysis to Determine Your Potential for Savings Wi th Co-generation Contact:

Ernest Bruss
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PROJECTS
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PLANFLOOR

- _ _ - I ~- I. - ,.,

J-- - '1~ - I..... . . , I

[ a )

3 ,205 sa F T

2,556 sa FT

DATA

TOTAL G R O S S BLOG 6,400 sa FT

COMMON AREA 640 sa FT

NEW MEXICO FEDERAL SAVINGS & LOAN
GUADALUPE PLAZA
ALBUQUERQUE, N.M.

BANK

OFFICE

PRO.JECT

This 6300 square foot
"satellite" building is part of
a shopping center develop­
ment. As such, it needed to
have its own identity and yet
be harm onious with the main
building of the center . Its
orientation required that it
be attractive from all sides.
The ideas of a flat roof
floatin g above a grass berm
met the criteria of
understated uniqueness. It
also provided visual relief
from the surrounding asphalt
parking lot by using land­
scaping elements as a major
part of the design. The space
frame canopy and oright red
ceramic tile entry wall pro­
vide accents to an otherwise
simple building.

ELEVATIONS

ARCHITECTS:
BARKER /BOL & ASSOCIATES
ALBUQUERQUE, N.M.
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New Brick Pavers!!
Meeting ASTM C902 Class SX (Severe Weather)

Now Made in New Mexico!!!

NEY BRICK COMPANY
4 Beautiful Colors

Split or full 2%" Pavers

ALSO OFFERING 1/2" AND 15/16" PA VERS AND ALL TYPES OF FACE BRICK.

Kinney B,ick Co. Albuquerque, NM (505) 877-4550

IF YOU THINKYOU HAVE1D GO
1DACAD SPECIALIST 1D

GET TIlE RIGHT CAD SYSTEM,
YOU'RE RIGHT

But you don't have togooutofyour way.
Because Businessland has a computer aided design specialist

to help put together the rightmicrocomputer based CAD system
for you.Andexpertsin ourlearning center can help youget the most
out ofyour system.

Soifyou thought you needed aspecialist, you were right. Butif
you thought Businessland couldn't bethatspecialized,you were wrong.

BUSINESS: A ~ ::--a®.........- ...-
Where business people are going tobuy computers.

ALBUQUERQUE:6601 Menaul Blvd.,N.E., 883-1833. Now more than60locations throughout theU.S.

12/ January-February 1986



ALLEN ROOFING CO. INC.

" OFTEN OUTPROMISED
SELDOM OUTPERFORMED"

• s tim a tin 9 Inc

1420 Carlisle N.E.
Suite 202A
Albuquerque, N.M. 87110
(505) 262-2681

CONSTRUCTION
COST ESTIMATES

EXPERIENCE
TECHNOLOGY
RESULTS

.THE CORONADO BUILDING, SANTA FE

We are pleased to have been the contractor on the restoration of this fine historic
building under the capable arch itectural direction of Stevens, Mallory, Pearl and
Campbell, P .A., Architects. Mr. John Dendahl, owner, selected the architects
because of their association and experience in historical restorations.

DAVIS & ASSOCIATES, INC. SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

lanuary - February 1986 /13
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TRADITIONS TO BUILD UPON
The Work of Stevens, Mallory, Pearl & Campbell

Gordon Ferguson, Architect-Engineer;
1944-1949. Ferguson and Stevens, Archi­
tects; 1949-1950. Ferguson, Stevens, and
Beck; 1950-1951. Ferguson, Stevens, and
Associates; 1951-1959. Ferguson, Stevens,
Mallory, and Pearl; 1959-1972. Stevens,
Mallory, Pearl & Campbell; 1972-1980.
Stevens, Mallory, Pear l & Campbell, P.A.,
Inc., 1980-present.

The name of the architectural firm changes
as the enterprise grows and evolves, as the
business builds and takes different organiza­
tional forms, as the people and personalities
change.

A question considered in this short article is
not what changes at SMP&C (or any other
developing practice) when a name changes, but
what remains the same. What remains consis­
tent about the firm 's professional practice from
year to year? What characterizes the firm's con ­
duct of business? What traditions do the part­
ners and staff carryon from decade to decade?

An historical sketch of the building of
SMP&C is presented in this article. It closes
with a few likely keys to SMP&C's continuing
pro sperit y - its traditions.

THE FOUNDING
Some Small Beginnings

During World War II, Gordon Ferguson
taught architectural engineering at the Univer­
sity of New Mexico and conducted a part-time
architectural practice from an office in his
home. Before and during the war, Ferguson's
design commissions were typically requests for
plans for modest homes in the northeast and
southeast sectors of Albuquerque. Near the
close of the war, in 1944, Ferguson ventured in­
to full-time architectural practice. In 1946 he
opened a new business office at III Amherst St.
S.E. in the then developing Nob Hill neighbor­
hood of the city. Lois Rawlings worked as his
firm 's secretary and bookkeeper. Architect­
engineer Mary Lou Grace and draftsman
Richard Quint joined Ferguson's staff to assist
him with design work for such clients as
Creamland Dairies, Albuquerque Lumber Com­
pany and KOB Radio.

Following World War II, the Albuquerque
area boomed with economic development and
building projects. Job opportunities at Kirtland
Airforce Base and at UNM attracted footloose
families from states across the nation. Between
1940 and 1950, Albuquerque's population
jumped from 45,500 to 96,800. New housing

and business, banking, medical and school
facilities were required to meet the needs of the
waves of people settling in Albuquerque. Archi­
tectural firms eager for new business - such as
those of Gordon Ferguson, Willard Kruger, and
Max Flatow and Jason Moore - established
prosperous businesses in the mid and late 1940s
as the demand for design and planning services
doubled and tripled in Albuquerque.

By 1948 Gordon Ferguso n was actively seek­
ing a solid partner to help manage his firm's in­
creasing workload. Mary Lou Grace put
Ferguson in contact with a likely prospect for a
partnership - Donald Stevens, a former college
classmate of hers at the University of Illinois.
In June of 1948 Stevens accepted an invitation
to visit Ferguson's office. He made a trip to
Albuquerque from the University of Texas at
Austin where he taught in the School of Archi­
tecture. Stevens liked what he saw in Albuquer­
que and what he envisioned as the future of the
city. His ambitions and career goa ls seemed in
harmony with those of Ferguson. In September
he moved to Albuquerque; and by early 1949
the partners of the firm of Ferguson and
Stevens, Architects, were sketching their firm's
own distinct course in business in Albuquerque.

SOME BIG BREAKS
The First Big Jobs

The year 1949 was a time for big breaks for
the firm of Ferguson and Stevens. The partners
energetically promoted thei r architectu ral ser­
vices in prominent business and social circles.
Contacts, acquaintances, and new friendships of
the partners led to challenging and profitable
big jobs for the young firm .

A connection with geologist and oilman Ellis
Hall led to a 1949 design commission for an
unusual stone residence on Hermosa Drive S.E.
in Albuquerque. In terms of 1985 inflated
dollars, Hall 's custom home was a million ­
dollar project and a prestigious job for
Ferguson and Stevens.

The contract for the firm's first large-scale
design job was also awarded in that year - the
commission for the 250-bed Bernalillo County­
Indian Hospital on Lomas Boulevard near
Girard N.E. This three-year hospital project did
much to establish a glowing reputation for the
Ferguson and Stevens partnership. The Board of
the hopsital, influential people in the county,
were pleased with the design and with the pro­
ject management abilities or the newly-formed
firm . Good reports about the firm's job perfor­
mance spread to public and private sector

Opposite page: The four principals :
Donald P. Stevens. retired 6/85
(seated left); George Clayton Pearl
(seated right); C. Robert Campbell
(standing left); Robert G. Mallory
(standing right), in the Anderson
Room, Zimmerman Library, Universi­
ty of New Mexico (SMP&C 1966).
Photograph by Kirk Gittings/Syntax .
Top: Gordon Ferguson. founder of
the firm.

Center: KOB Studio, 5th and Silver
SW., Albuque rque (1946).

Above: Hogan's Pastries Shop, 5th
and Copper NW., Albuquerque
(1947).

Cover Photo: Three by Stevens,
Mallory. Pearl, and Campbell ­
Plaza Campana (top), Albuquerque
Public Library (right), Chaparrel Girl
Scout Service Center (left) ­
downtown Albuquerque.
Photograph by Kirk Gittings/Syntax .
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The projects undertaken
in the early 19505 were
challenging and diverse in
character - literally from
barracks to banks.

decision-makers in the community. The talk was
of cost-containment and timely completions of
scheduled tasks. Phone calls from prospective
clients began to ring more frequently at the
partners' desks.

In the summer of 1950, Ferguson -and Stevens
were joined in partnership by Martin Beck. An
experiment was attempted. Beck, who lived in
Santa Fe, believed he could successfully solicit
lucrative state government jobs. For seven
months he attempted to establish a Santa Fe
branch for the firm. His endeavors failed, he
left the partnership, and in early 1951 his name
was dropped from the name of the firm.

The projects undertaken by Ferguson, Stevens,
and Associates in the early 1950s in Albuquer­
que were challenging and diverse in character ­
literally from barracks to banks . The firm
designed a troop housing complex at Kirtland
Airforce Base and concrete "tilt-up" warehouse
structures for the Charles Ilfeld Company in
Albuquerque, Gallup, and Durango. Oscar Love
of the Albuquerque National Bank was influen­
tial in awarding the firm its first major commis­
sions for bank buildings - the designs for
ANB's North Fourth Street Branch in 1953 and
its new main office at Central and Second
Avenue in 1957. Bank facilities for ANB, the
American Bank of Commerce, and Rio Grande
Valley Bank were later to become consistent
sources of work and revenue for the established
firm.

The County-Indian Hospital contract also
paved a broad path to other important hospital
work in Albuquerque and throughout the state.
In 1952 the firm was commissioned to execute
working drawings for John Gaw Meem's design
for Bataan Memorial Methodist Hospital.
Physician-entrepreneur Randy Lovelace awarded
design contracts for subsequent additons to
both Bataan Hospital and the adjacent Lovelace
Clinic to Ferguson, Stevens and Associates.

-
Jobs for Dr. Lovelace in the I950s and I960s

were to set partner Donald Stevens on a track
toward three decades of specialized design work
on highly technical hospital and medical
facilities. Stevens' intensive research and study
of new processes and techniques of medical
treatment in both the United States and Europe
led to his and his firm's involvement in the
planning and execution of designs for several
prototypes for innovative medical facilities in
this country. Included in the firm's credits are
the first cardiac catheterization unit and the
first high-energy cobalt therapy unit. Design
work for the Lovelace, the Presbyterian, the An­
na Kaseman, and the Carrie Tingley hospital
complexes from the 1950s through to the 1980s
have made SMP&C's name synonymous with
expert knowledge and problem-solving skills in
the design of medical facilities.

Public Schools
Public Awareness

Commissions for civic and governmental
buildings are typically a mainstay of large archi­
tectural practices . In the early 1950s, public
schools in Albuquerque were overcrowded; and
the Board of the Albuquerque Public Schools
acted to build new facilities, with junior high
schools being a high priority. The APS Board
- which included such community leaders as
S.Y. Jackson, Leon Thompson, Bob Elder and
Jeannette Stromberg - was impressed with the
credentials of Ferguson , Stevens, and Associates.
The firm was awarded contracts for a planned
sequence of new schools and in 1953 began
programming the projects in close consultation
with APS superintendent Charles Spain.
McKinley and John Adams Junior High
Schools were two of the firm's first

~ -

Right: Proposed Ultimate Develop­
ment Plan, Presbyterian Hospital
Center (1959). Rendering , G. Pearl.
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assignments. Careful construction cost manage­
ment led to subsequent commissions for the
South Valley Senior High School in 1957 (now
Rio Grande) a nd the ortheast Senior High
School in 1959 (now Manzano). Public scho ols
and public buildings increased the community's
awareness of the design work of Ferguson,
Stevens, and Associates (see Civic Auditorium
insert).

YOUNG BUCKS
Tasks and Teamwork

In his years of teaching at UT's School of
Architecture in Austin, Stevens encountered
several extraordinary students who were surely
"going somewhere" in the architectural profes­
sion. Where three of Steve ns' ste llar for me r
students were going was out west to New Mex­
ico. In 1950 George Pearl and in 1951 Robert
Mallory and Van Dorn Hooker accepted jobs
within the firm of their former professor and
mentor. The first two architects, Pearl and
Mallory, settled into long-term career positions
in the partnership. In 1959 both associates for ­
mally joined the firm as partners .

The University of New Mexico supplied pro­
mising young architects as well. Robert Camp­
bell earned his degree in architecture from
UNM in 1958. On-the-job training in the firm
beginning in 1955 led Campbell to a fo rmal
partnership in SM P&C in 1972.

Over the decades, dozens of men and women
who have distinguished themselves as architects
or engineers in New Mexico and the nation
have held jobs in the firm. The alphabetical list
that follows credits some of the people who have
assured SMP&C a prestigious role in architec­
ture and planning in New Mexico. The pool of
talent drawn upon by the firm has, indeed,
been deep:

Craig Andrews
Kalman Axelrod
Jo se Baca
Bill Barber
H. Barker
Martin Beck
Bob Biddle
Louis Castillo
Annelle Darby
Hal Dean
Mike Del Maestro
Bill Ellison
Bill Gafford
Channel Graham
John Harvey
John Heimrich
Roy Hertweck
Jesse Holmes
Van Dorn Hooker
Donald Jon es
John Krueger
Gerry Lak e
Jim Liberty
Bob Lockwood
Joe Long
Jim MacCornack

Charles MacCra)'
Pat McClernon
Art Marshall
Ed Mayers
Douglass Mehrens
Daniel ewman
Mike orton
Don Oshwald
Jerry Percifield
Ernie Pogue
Charles Quinlan
Betty Drake Ripple
Morris Ripple
Robert Rocheleau
Felix Rodriguez
Teresa Rodriguez
Jim Rowland
Don Schlegel
Bill Shelton
Wayne Usiak
Richard Willard
Bill Wilson
David Witherspoon
Richard Yates
Regan Young

THE CI VIC AUDITORIUM, 1955-1956
Albuquerque's city planners saw a need for a large public gathering place for

special events and cultural activities beginning in the 1930s. The dream for a
civic center - after years of deba te, plan ning, and re-pla nning - beca me a con­
crete reality in the mid-1950s. Ferguson , Stevens, and Associates won the contract
for the auditorium and captured the imaginations of people across the nation
with the use of an ancient yet seldom-used building method. The dome of the
building was formed by heaping the local sandy soil along Lomas Boulevard to the
size and shape required, pouring concerete over the mound of earth, allowing it
to harden, and then excavating the earth from under the 218-foot-diameter dome.
Albuquerque's Civic Auditorium was acknowledged as having the largest thin­
shelled dome of any structure in the nation at that time.

The construction phases of the hall caught both the local and national
spotlight. An article in Life magazine in 1956 featured Albuquerque's new
"mound-made auditorium" and Ferguson, Stevens, and Associates' clever design
for building "from the roof down:' Frank Lloyd Wright himself, at a lecture at
UNM, praised the firm's adoption of poured-in-place construction technology.
The Civic gave the firm high visibility and prominence for its bold use of
"modern:' cost-saving techniques. Commissions for other major public buildings,
such as Albuquerque's Downtown Public Library, have continued to build a
warm regard in the community for the work of the firm .

Below: Los Alamos Main Exchange.
Mountain Bell (1969). Rendering. G.
Pearl.

LOS ALAMOS MAIN EXCHANGE COMPLEX
L OB A L AMOS NEW MEXtCO
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Above: Albuquerque Main Ubrary,
5th and Copper NW. (1974).
Photog raph by Kirk Gitt ings/Syntax .

Below: Design as a Problem-Solving
Process. Schemes and sketches. G.
Pearl; Ortega Hall, UNM (1977).

RECOGNITION
Awards and Commendations

Theory on architectural practice and systems
approaches to design and project management
have been serious considerations and consistent
features of work at SMP&C since its beginnings
in the 19405 and 1950s. Both of the firm's first
partners were professors of the architectural and
engineering profession before they ventured into
a full-time design business. Client needs assess­
ment and the initial programming aspects of

the design process have been emphasized
throughout the work history of SMP&C. The
firm is known in the community to plan
buildings that truly meet clients' needs.

The firm, or members of the firm, have been
singled out for awards of merit and commenda­
tion since the 1950s - by corporate clients, by
magazines and journals, by professional
associations. George Pearl, F.A.l.A., director of
the design department at SMP&C since 1957,
has earned high distinction as recipient of the
Western Mountain Regional Silver Medal from
the American Institute of Architects. Pearl has
garnered over 25 awards for excellence in ar­
chitectural design. The short list that follows
presents a few of the firm's design or project
management awards and commendations. Pro­
ject dates are noted:

- Idea l Cement Company, Office Building,
Tijeras, N.M.; 1957-1958; AlA. Western
Mountain Region and Factory Magazine.

- Blue Cross-Blue Shield, Office Building,
Albuquerque, 1966-1967; A.lA. Western
Mountain Region and A.IA. Albuquerque
Chapter.

- Chemistry Building Addition, University of
New Mexico, 1967-1969; A.lA. Western
Mountain Region.

- Mountain Bell, Los Alamos Main Exchange
Complex, 1967-1969; Bell Telephone System
Award, AlA. Western Mountain Region and
A.lA. Albuquerque Chapter.

- Albuquerque Main Public Library,
1972-1974; New Mexico Arts Commission
and Al.A Western Mountain Region.

- Acoma-Laguna-Canoncito Hospital,
1974-1977; AlA. Western Mountain Region,
New Mexico Associated General Contractors
Building Division.

- City of Albuquerque, Yale-Burton Reservoir,
1976-1977; New Mexico Society of
Architects.

- Plaza Campana, Mountain Bell, Albuquer­
que, 1979-1981; New Mexico Society of
Architects.

- Sunwest Bank Building, Downtown Albu­
querque, 1982-1984; Architects of the Year
/984 and New Mexico Chapter American
Subcontractors Association.

e

--~~._~- - - -
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SUCCESS STORIES
Traditions to Build Upon

Last year SMP&C celebrated its 40th An­
niversary of work in architecture and planning
in the Southwest. Since 1944 the firm has com­
pleted more than 2400 projects . Its staff now
comprises more than 30 professionals and sup­
port personnel. Because of its success and sus­
tained stability over the decades, and because of
its significant inl1uence on the built environ­
ment in this state, SMP&C has become both a
business and cultural institution in Albuquerque
and New Mexico and a formidable competi tor
in the regional marketplace.

The whys and wherefores of the success of
the firm originally founded by Gordon
Ferguson are complex. There are the external
factors - like a lively and healthy business
climate in Albuquerque and New Mexico
following World War II. There are internal fac­
tors - like a work force of well-trained,
dedicated, resourceful architects and support
personnel. The factors most inl1uential on a
firm's prospects, however, are the "between"
factors. The between factors are those that
describe the rapport between service-providers
and their customers, between architects and
their clients.

At SMP&C the architect-client working rel­
tionship has always been the highest of
priorities. The firm has a distinct service orien­
tation and an egalitarian (as opposed to elitist)
disposition toward its professional work. The
efforts of the partners and staff are clearly
directed toward the satisfaction of the client's
particular needs. To assure that a design is rele­
vant to the client, initial programming and con­
tinued client conferences are heavily emphasized
throughout the course of projects. Designer
George Pearl advises that the work of architects
is to "help people build what they want to
build to do what they want to do:' The partners
and associates believe in simple, appropriate
formulas for success.

Today SMP&C principals Robert Mallory and
Robert Campbell closely monitor the progress
and control the quality of commissioned jobs .
Useful and efficient bui ldings that are appealing
to the eye, relevant to their context, built within
budget and completed on time are consistent
objectives . Such buildings please clients and
genera te repeat and new business.

As senior partners retire and new partners
and associates join the firm, SMP&C's name
will no doubt change again. The name may
change, but the way SMP&C has conducted its
business will continue in dependable fashion.
The "new guys" in the firm - associates
Michael Dickson, Glenn Fellows, Robert
Moraga, John Nagy and Chris Willadsen - all
understand and respect the importance of
SMP&C's service traditions. It is evident from
the firm's accomplishments that these are tradi­
tions to build upon.

Story by Paul J. Suozzi

Left: Sunwest Bank Building . 4th and
Roma NW.• Albuquerque (1984).
Photograph by Kirk Gittings/Syntax .

Below: Staft photo, design studio,
SMP&C. 6/85. Those present.
clockwise from left: Donald Stevens,
John Nagy, Robert Moraga, (center)
Michael Dickson, Paul Kenderdine.
Phil Stevens, Stephanie Degan,
Allison Abraham. George Pearl.
Glenn Fellows.
Photograph by Kirk Gitt ingS/Syntax .

...the architect-client
working relationship has
always been the highest
of priorities.
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New Mexican Architecture in the Context of the Southwest

by Mary Grizzard

Fou r of the Southwestern states in the
United Stat es contain significant architec­
ture da tin g from the Spanish colon ial
period, for they belonged to the north ern
fron tier of New Spain. It should not be
surprising that churches constitute the
majority of these structures, for one is
reminded of their importance by Pro­
fessor Herb ert E. Bolton 's 1917 essay' on
the Spanish mission as a frontier institu­
tion , in which he stated that
"whoever und ertakes to interpret the
forces by which Spai n entered her rule ,
her language, her law, and her traditions
over the Frontiers of her vast American
possessions, must give close att enti on to
the missions. .. ".

Throughout the Spanish borderlands of
the United States, the missionaries were
Franciscans. The only exception was in
the Pimeria Alta of Southern Arizona,
wh ich was a Jesuit mission field until the
Order was expelled from Spanish
America in 1767. After the Jesuit expul­
sion, southern Arizona was also entrusted
to the Franciscans. Chronologically,
Spanish settlement was earliest in New
Mexico, wh ere it began in the lat e six­
teenth century. Then, towards the end of
the seventeenth century, the first nine set­
tlements in Texas were begun, and by the
course of the eighteenth century, there
were some thirty additional missions
within the present state . Jesuit missionary
acti vity in southern Arizona was under­
way by the earl y eighteenth century, and
continued successfully until their expul­
sion . Th e Franciscan chain of missions in
Pimeria Alta, including southern
Arizona, was contemporary with that of
California. Th e mission conquest of Alta
California, the present state, was begun
in 1769 by Fath er Junipero Serra and his
companions.

Despite general similarities, there are
some regional differences among the ex­
tant architecture and art of these four
Southwestern sta tes. In all of these states,
adobe as well as stone churches were
built, whil e the houses tend ed to be of
adobe. Th ere are more extant missions,
ruined as well as restored , in New Mexico
than in any other state. The predominant
building material the re was adobe, and
the interior and exterior decoration of the
churches tended to be modest. In view of
the simplicity of the church decorations,
it is paradoxical that New Mexico also
had the strongest local industry of paint­
ing and sculpture, whil e the oth er areas
relied much more heav ily on imported

goods and artisans. Accordingly, the most
elaborate architectural sculpture was nor­
mall y by professional artisans who cam e
from present-day Mexico for the purpose
of completing specific tasks in the nor ­
thern provinces. In the Southwestern
states, there was beautiful , ornate ar­
chitectural sculpture, which compared
favorably to an y in Mexico at the time.
Th e most outstanding remaining ex­
amples, all from the eighteenth century,
are: La Castrense Altarpiece in Santa Fe;
San Xavier del Bac Church near Tucson;
and Missions San Antonio del Valero, San
Jose, and Concepcion in San Antonio.

Th e province of New Mexico was the
most northern of all those of ew Spain .
It was supported by the Crown in order
to convert Native Americans to Chris­
tianity, and also because the area served
as an important defense outpost for the
more southerly colon ial provinces of
Sonora and Nueva Vizcaya." The first
successful colonization of New Mexico
began in 1598, und er the leadership of
the first governor, Don Juan de Onate.
Under his leadership, the Spaniards
found ed the first capital , San Gabriel , on
a site some th irty miles northwest of San­
ta Fe. In 1610, a year after Pedro de
Peralta 's arrival as the third governor, a
new capital was founded in Santa Fe. 3

Missionary colonization of ew Mexico
began in earnest during the early years of
the seventeenth century, over a hundred
years earlier than elsewhere in the
Southwestern United States. In New Mex­
ico as elsewhere in the Spa nish
borderlands of the Unit ed Stat es, except
for the brief peri od of Jesuit missionary
acti vity in Arizona, the missionaries were
Franci~cans. Although there was a mis­
sion supply service from Mexico City
which brought necessities to the friars
every three to five years , those who staf­
fed the isolated missions had to be very
self-reliant. ' Indeed, with respect to
church and conve nto (friary) construc­
tion, there were generally only selftaught
friars serving as archit ects.

Due to the strong presence of existing
building traditions among the native
pueblo populations, Spanish construction
combined wit h existing methods .
Naturally, readily available materials
were those used in pre-Hispanic as well
as in Hispanic construc tion. Indians had
used sto ne in construc tion wh ere it was
available; where it was not , walls were
built of adobe. Indians had used puddled
adobe or hand-fashioned bricks ("turtle-

backs"), whil e the Spani ards adopted
these techniques and also contributed the
use of adobe bricks , prepared in wooden
molds. Although fired tiles for roofing
and paving were use extensively in most
oth er areas settl ed by the Spaniards, they
were never used in New Mexico. Per haps
the reason ma y be that the Spaniards,
find ing a tradition of low-fired pottery
production among the Indians, interven­
ed to impose some Spanish pottery
designs, but did not impose their own
methods of production in or der to
manufacture highly-fi red pa ntiles for
roofing. A strong regional , colonia l style
of architecture developed in New Mexico,
but the sources for this local development
ar e also found in Mexico, as
demonstrated by the examples of adobe,
trabeated structures with similar plans,
fenestration, decoration, and siting to be
foun d to the south.

Th e basic diffe rence between Mexican
and New Mexican churches is that the
latter were generally of much simpler
construction. They were of smaller
dimensions, lacked vaulted roofs, and
had less ornamentation than their Mex­
ican counterparts. In New Mexico, the
floors were variously of adobe bri cks,
hard-packed adobe or flagsto ne. The
wall s were generally of adobe br icks or of
stone. Sometimes the walls were plastered
with white gypsum; oth er times the y
were plastered with plain adobe;
sometimes they were left plain. The roofs
were flat, with adobe mud and weeds
stacked on supporting vigas (roof beams).
Sometimes the vigas were squared , and
rested on corbels, or wall brackets. The
interstices of the vigas were usuall y filled
with latias - laid in herringbone or
perpendicular fashion . The fenestration
was minimal in a harsh climate, and con­
sisted of a high , rectilinear ope ning in the
facade; one or two openings in the nave;
and one or two more in the transepts. a
transverse clerestory opened just before
the altar to provide a flood of light on
the presbytery. In order to take best ad­
vantage of the clerestory illumination,
New Mexican churches were often built
with the apse to the west or to the
nor th ." In the seventeenth and eighteenth
centuries, both simp le rectangular as well
as cruciform plans wer e built."

Accompanying the mission church was
the conven to or friary, built as a series of
small rooms sur rounding an inn er patio.
Although the convento was usuall y on the
south side (the wa rmest) it was sometimes
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Figure 1 -
Nu estro Senora de los Angele» de Porciuncula (1706)
Pecos Monument
Photo by M . Grizzard (1984)

built on the north side, as at Acoma, or
the east side , as at Isleta. Often there
were two stories, a second patio, and cor­
rals attached. In mission settlements
throughout the Spanish borderlands of
the United States , the mission was more
than a convento. There were also various
workshops, storerooms, and sometimes
quarters for a few soldiers. These various
rooms were built around a square or rec­
tangular plaza. Dominating the complex
in importance as well as in architectural
interest, was the church . It is to the ex­
amination of a representative example of

ew Mexican Spanish colonial churches
that we now turn .

Perhaps the most impressive mission
ruin in New Mexico is the tow ering, early
eighteenth-century adobe church of
Nuestra Senora de los Angeles at Pecos.
At the tim e of Coronado's explorations of
the Southwest in 1540-41, Pecos, or
Cicuye pueblo, was the largest in the
region. During the course of some
seventy-five years, beginning in the sec­
ond quarter of the seventeenth century,
four successive churches were built to
serve the pueblo. Toda y's visitor to Pecos

'ational Park is onlv aware of two chur­
ches: the ea rly eighteenth-century ruin of
the last church on the site, and the foun­
dations of the second church , built in
1622. A brief historv of the four churches
of Pecos gives an id~a of the type of
structures built in the region , as well as
an und erstanding of the difficulties in
maintaining them .

Evid ence of the existence of the first
church at Pecos is in a 1621 lett er written
by Fray Pedro de Ortega, the guardian,
or head, of the mission. He wrote to his
superiors to complain of the governo r's
lack of cooperation in encouraging his In­
dian parishioners to attend church." Ex­
cavators found this church, built on a
narrow ledge north of the pueblo, to be a
single-nave adob e brick structure without
transepts, floored with hard-packed
adobe."

The first church was only temporary,
for the next year a far larger structure
was built south of the pueblo. Th e
earliest documentation of the second
church is in a 1622 letter to the viceroy
by Ortega's successor as head of the mis­
sion, Fray Andres Sua rez. In thi s letter,
Sua rez asked for a painting of Nuestra
Senora de los Angeles, and also estimated
that the church would be complete in a
year.

The visiting Fray Alonso de Benavides,
who came to New Mexico in 1625-29 to
inspect the missions, credited Suarez with
having built the church. Benavides fur­
ther described the structure, dedicated to
Nuestra Senora de los Angeles de Por­
ciuncula, to be "of peculiar construction
and beauty, very spacious, with room for
all the people of the pueblo.?"
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The park visitor may trace the found a­
tions of Suarez' huge church, the largest
in the seventeenth century north of the
present Mexican border. Although there
were no transepts , it was cruciform in
plan, with two sacristies flanking the
polygonal apse. The floors were adobe
brick, but washed wit h a white gypsum
plaster. Along the exterior of the 133-foot
nave walls were a series of rectangular
wall buttresses. The buttresses served to
strengthen the wall s, already up to ten
feet thick , and rising to approximately 45
feet. An extensive convento with an open ,
interior courtyard was added after the
church was completed. According to a
1664 document, the re was even an organ
within the church .'? Th e sight of the
white church, crowned with a
crenellated parapet and six tow ers, must
have astonished seventeenth-century
visitors to the northern provinces of New
Spain.! '

Th e Suarez church was burned in the
1680 Pueblo revolt and a third church
was built in 1694, short ly after the
Span ish reconquest of New Mexico. In
1694, Governor de Vargas recorded in
journal that various building mat erials,
including timber for a roof , were being
prepared for a chapel at PecoS.12

Although detail s of its plan are not clear,
archeological evidence indicates that this
third church lay immediately parallel to
the burned wall of the earlier,
seventeenth-century Suarez church. "

By 1706, the fourth (and last) church
at Pecos (Figure 1) was being built over
the site of the burned second church . I .

Fray Jose de Arrangui, assigned as guar­
dian of the mission, built the 1706 church
some five feet above the filled-in ground
level of the much larger Suarez church,
and gave the structure a new orientation,
with the facade facing the west. IS The
cruciform plan of this last church with
shallow transepts and polygonal apse, as
well as the plan of the accompan ying
convento, can be readily appreciated by
visiting the ruins. Th e nave was 76 feet
long, and the adobe brick walls between
5.5 and 7.5 feet thick. A 1776 visitor to
the church describes two bell towers
flanking the door to make a narthex, and
an exterior balcony which was entered
from a window in the choir loft. The flat
roof was sustained within by squared
pine timbers resting at the ends on carved
corbels. Over the transept, the roof was
higher to allow for a wooden grilled
clerestory window. 16

Th e 1776 account also describes the in-

terior of the church, and allows us to bet­
ter picture the eighteenth-century ap­
pearance of wha t we can only see today
as ruin s. There were five timber steps
leading up to the altar, and on the wall
above were two paintings. These
represented the Assumption of the Virgin,
and Nuestra Senora de los Angeles. In the
transepts were tw o paintings on buffalo
hides , representing St. Anthony of Padua
and the Virgin of Guadalupe. There was
also a wooden pulpit described as bein g
" in the usual place," which would have
been on the south wall of the transept.
Th e only aspect of these decorations to
survive intact was the painting of Nuestra



Senora de los Angeles, now in the church
of San Anton io de Padua, PecOS.17

Of special note is the use of adob e ar­
ches at Pecos. Although the construction
of arches was rare in Spanish colonial
New Mexico, there were some examples
at this eighteenth-century church.
Although the original arch es are no
longer visible today, an 1880 photograph
(Figure 2) in the Museum of New Mexico
Archives shows a tru e arch near the
south ern transept . The arch es which we
see toda y on either side of the sanctuary
were restored by Nusbaum in 1911.' 8 Ar­
ches during the Spanish colonial period in
New Mexico were also used at the
porter's lodge at Isleta , and in the bell
towers at Pojoaque, San Ildefonso, and
San Juan pueblos. "

In conclusion, New Mexican churches
of the Spanish colonial period were of
striking simplicity compared to those
built elsewhere in the Southwestern
United Stat es. Yet within the region , the
repeated use of a relativ ely narrow ran ge
of building mat erial s, plans, and or­
namentation led to a stronger, more
distinctive loca l style than elsewhere in
the Southwest.

divided ;and became Durango, Chihuahua,
part of Coahuila , and Sonora . Robert Ryal,
trans lator and editor, "New Mexico in mid­
Eighteenth Century: A Report Based on
Govern or Velez (Capuchin's Inspect ion ,"
Southwes tern Historical Quart erly
89(1973): 166-181.

3Don Juan de Onate was the first governor ap­
pointed by the viceroy (1598-1607); Juan Mar­
tinez de Montoya served as actin g governor
until Pedro de Peralt a's appointment in 1609.

•France V. Scholes, "The Supply Sen -ice of the
ew Mexican Missions in the Seventeenth Cen­

tur y," New Mexico Historical Revi ew
5(1930):93-404.

' While there are man y exceptions thr oughout
history, including tha t of Old St . Peter's in
Rome, in which the apse faced West, the usual
practice is for the apse to face East.

·Whereas dur ing the early mission period in
sixteenth-century Mexico, churches were rarely
provided with tran septs, in New Mexico's early
mission period of the seventeenth century,
both cruciform as well as single-nave churches
were built .

"France V. Scholes, "Church and Stat e in New
Mexico, 1610-1650," New Mexico Historical
Review 11 (1939): 169.

IOFrance V. Scholes, "Documents for the
Historv of New Mexico Missions in the 17th
Century,' New Mexico Historica l Review
4(1929):47-48.

lIRemains of whit e gypsum plaster were found
by excavation, and the crenellati ons are a
logical extension of the wall buttresses. The six
towers were report ed by Agustin Vetancurt ,
and confirmed through excavation. Agustin de
Vetancurt , Cron ica de la Provincia de Santa
Evangelio de Mexico Mexico: Biblioteca de la
Iberia (1871), P. 323. For a report on recent
excavations, including the retri eval of the
whit e plaster remains, see Alden C. Hayes,
The Four Chu rches of Pecos (Albuquerque:
University of New Mexico Press, 1974), p. 22.

" Jessie B. Bailey, Diego de Vargas and th e
Reconquest of New Mexico (Albuquerque:
University of New Mexico Press, 1940), p. 176.

I3 Excavations by Jean M. Pinkley and William
B. Witkind in the 1940s for the Museum of
New Mexico revealed several Chri stian burials
below the nave of the third church, in use for
nine years. Oth erwi se, there is not enough ar­
chaeological evidence to reconstruct the plan
of the third church with any accuracy.

Figure 2 -
Nu estro Senora de los Angeles de Porciuncula (1706)
Pecos, New Mexico
From Photo Archivey of New Mexico (Catalogue # 40589)
Phot o by George C. Benn ett (Sept. 2 or 3. 1880)

" A 1706 report by the mission custodia Fray
Juan alvarez stated that "The building on the
church has begun . Thi s mission is called
Nuestra Senora de Porciuncula." Charles
Wilson Hackett , Historical Documents
Relating to New Mexico , Nueva Vi::;caya, and
Approaches Th ereto , to 1773, vol, 3
(Washington D.C .: Carnegie Institution,
1937), P. 373.

" The facade of the first Pecos church faced
south ; the second church east; the third west,
and the fourth west. Unusual orientations of
churches were common in New Mexico;
sometim es this was due to the site; other times
in order to provide optimal illumination
throu gh eastward-facin g clerestory windows.

I·Dominguez, Fray Anastasio. Trans. and Ed .
By Eleanor B. Adams and Fray Angelico
Chavez. The Missions of New Mexico, 1776.
Albuqu erque : The University of New Mexico
Press, 1956, pp . 208-214.

" When the inhabit ant s of Pecos pueblo left in
1838, they left the painting with the San An­
tonio de Padua church .

Footnotes:

'For the full text of H.E. Bolton's article, see:
"The Mission as a Frontier Institution in the
Spanish American colonies," American
Historical Rev iew 22(1917):42-61.

' The governor's report stresses the import ance
of New Mexico's defensive position for the
southern provinces. After Mexican in­
dependence from Spain, these provinces were

"Stanlev A. Stubbs, Bruce T . Ellis, and Alfred
E. Dlttert , "The 'L ost' Pecos Church ," El
Palacio 64(1957):67-92.

' Frederick W. Hodge, George P. Hammond,
and Agapit o Rey, Fray Alonso de Benavid es'
Revised Mem orial of 1634, Coronado
Historical Series, vol. 4 (Albuquerque: Univer­
sity of New Mexico Press, 1945), p. 67.

I·Untii recentl y, it was thought that these ar­
ches at Pecos were corbelled arches. A corbell­
ed arch is an overhanging course of bricks suc­
cessively repeated on opposite sides of an open­
ing, until it is a complete false arch . It may be
trimmed in semicircular form even though the
courses are all horizontal rather than radial.

" George Kubler , Th e Religious Arch itecture of
New Mexico (Albuquerque: University of New
Mexico Press, 1940), p. 38. .
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Brick adds beauty and value to your home. Both inside
and out. A brick entry says your home is a step above other
homes. A brick fireplace warms it up. And a brick exterior
means energy-efficiency, fire-resistance-and good looks that
are sure to heighten its resale value. Sowhether you're buying,
building, or remodeling take a step towards greater value with
brick. For more information about the benefits of brick, con­
tact your local brick manufacturer or dealer today.

WITH
National BrickWeek, June 9-15.

•

MASON CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION OF NEW MEXICO
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NMA NEWS
CONSTRUCTION BEGINS ON N.E. HEIGHTS OFFICE BUILDING

Groundbreaking for "The Presidio" , a
new two-story office building to be
located at 11200 Lomas NE, was set for
the last week of December. The Presidio,
which translates from Spanish to mean
'meeting place' was designed by the Albu­
querque architectural firm of Holmes,
Sabatini, Smith and Eeds.

The 25,000 sq. ft. building will stand
on the southeast corner of Lomas and
Hotel Circle . It is the first of possibly

several developments slated for construc­
tion on the now vacant land.

The multi-level complex is designed to
offer scenic mountain views to the north
and east. Both levels also wrap around a
central atrium. A landscaped, walled
courtyard at the entrance provides a
restful , secluded view from south and
west facing offices.

Brokerage Services, Inc., a local
brokerage insurance agency, owns the

building and plans to relocate to the
premises when construction is completed
next summer. Over 7,000 sq. ft. of
ground level space will be available for
lease through Henderson Investment
Corp. of Albuquerque.

Weaver Construction has been nam ed
general contractor for the project. Patri­
cian Design will serve as inter ior
designer.

Congratulations to
Stevens, Mallory, Pearl & Campbell

on your 50th Anniversary

Baldridge Lumber Company
Architectural Specialties Division

(505) 881·0220

etal ce, inc.

HEATING , VENTILATING &
AIR CONDITIONING CONTRACTORS

4538 McLEOD NE ALBUQUERQUE, N.M. 87109

Congratulations to

Stevens, Mallory, Pearl &Campbell

on your 50th Anniversary
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CONGRATULATIONS
Stevens, Mallory, Pearl & Campbell,

Architects
on your

50th Anniversary

Remember to use "The Byrne Notebook"

THE BYRNE COMPANY
Manufacturer's Representative

2403 San Mateo , N.E., S-16
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110

(505) 881-0141

ALBUQUERQUE

EL PASO

CARLISLE - Roofing and Waterproofing

COLORKLAD - Pre-Fin ished Flat Sheet

INSULICRETE - Exter ior Insulation System

NATURAlITE, INC. - Domed and Custom Skyligh ts

RMAX - Rigid Isocyanurate Insulation

Congratulations to SMPC for
50 years of stupendous architectural design

Congratulations!
Stevens, Mallory, Pearl & Campbell

Architects

Congratulations to
Stevens. Mallory. Pearl & Campbell

on your 50th Anniversary

"Job Well Done"

"From One Oldtimer to Another"
Lembke Construction Co•• Inc.

(founded 1888)

On Your 50th Anniversary

Given Paint and Wall Coverings
" Distributors for Commercial Wall Coverings"

El Paso Las Cruces
1-800-351-6041 P.O. Box 1188

(505) 243-7808
Albuquerque

New Mexico 87103

P.O. BOX 9043/87119 • 1920 COLUMBIA SE / 87106
ALBUQUERQUE , NEW MEXICO

(505) 242.an4

Congratulations to
STEVENS, MALLORY, PEARL & CAMPBELL

on your 50th Anniversary

-~~~~
Thanks for your continual specifying of

quality cabinetry and millwork
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Happy 50th Anniversary
to

Stevens, Mallory, Pearl and Campbell

Wellborn Paint Manufacturing Company

"Stores Located Throughout New Mexcio "



I .

Los Patios, Inc.

·Wholesale Nursery
·Landscape Architects

& Contractors

Happy 50th Anniversary

to

Stevens, Mallory, Pearl

and

Campbell, Architects

Custom design
fortoday's
architectural
needs.

Growing With
Albuquerque
Since 1947

• Canvas Awnings
Commercial &: residential. Custom desiqned & filhricated

• Upholstering
Commercial. office. patio. auto. trucks. RV's

• Tent Rentals/Sales/Repairs
Party canopies. biq lops. camping

Congratulations
Stevens, Mallory, Pearl & Campbell

Architects

on your 50th Anniversary

"W e wish you continued success"
FROM

All American Enterprises, Inc.
301 Eubank Southeast
Albuquerque, NM 87123
(505) 299-7653

MEMBER ASSOCIATED FOAM MANUFACTURERS B/e Bradbury & Stamm
Construction Company, Inc.
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Professional Directory

Lujan Beltran
LONG and WAT ERS

ARCHITECTS • ENGINEERS • PLANNERS

Arch itecture and Planning (505) 265-8885

8009 Marble N.E. Albuquerque. New Mexico 87110 210 La Veta NE •
Phone (505) 255-5528

Albuquerque. New Mexico 87108

(505) 983-2000 OFFlCE

62 1 OLD SANTA FE TRAIL. SUITE 7
SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO 87501

204 N. AUBURN. FARMINGTON. N.M. 87401
BOX 494 EDWARDS, COLO. 81632

(ED5) 242-7572

John eden i_-----00
architect

PLGH & ASSOCIATES, AlA
,ARCHITECTURE AND PLANNING
301 GOLD SOUTHWEST. SUITE 202
ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO 87102

~

11•••• (505 ) 327 -3590II (303) 926-3810

PUBU C RELATIONS. LEGISLATIVE . GOVERN MENTAL AFFAIRS

DICKl RYALS

Consulting Services & Associates

bob turner a ia
v ice president

joe boehning aia pe
president

d craig protz ala
executive vice pre s id en t

david a cook aia
v ice president

j. david dekker
architec t

marc schiff
architect

robert: gerard hei er
project manager

e
II

505 ·843 ·9639

DESIGN
PROFESSIONALS. INC.
4301 CARLISLE BOULEVARD, NE

A L B U Q U E RQU E , NEW M EXIC O 87107
(5 05) 881-6336

ARCHITECTS/ENGINEERS

105 fourth street SW, albuquerque. nrn 87102

50 5 2 42-4044

architecture
planning
engineering

boehnlng protz oook
11 0 second street s .w - su ite 500
albuquerque. new mexico 87102
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WM. STAN LEY DAVI S, P.E.
President

GENERAL (505)
CONTRAcroRS 9BB-2B94

DAVIS 8:
ASSOCIATES

INC.

PO Box 2184
Santa Fe
New Mexico
87501

Professional Directory

CONSTRUCTION
REAL ESTATE

DEVELOPMENT

PRADO VERDE. INC.
(505) 988-28 45

410 OLD TAOS HWY . SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO 87501

Greene~AGEGreene ~~~~~~,mD
LAURA A. LAGGE PRESIDENT

SUITE214· FIRST INTERSTATEBANKPlAZA••
125 UNCOLNAVENUE'SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO87501

PHONE 15051983-5572

I

BERNABE ROMERO

bernabe'
POST OFFICE BOX 5072

ROMERO SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

a. i.a 87502

architect 200 WEST DE VARGAS

TELEPHONE (505) 982-2123

Lawyers Title of Santa Fe, Inc.
422 'XI: San Francisco
Santa Fe, N.M. 87501

(505) 988-2233

James W Catron
Chainnan of the Board

Phillip A. Griego
President

A. EUGENE SANCHEZ
ARCHITECT AlA

621 OLD SANTA FE TRAIL
SUITE 4
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501

Locally Owned - Na tionally Underwriuen

Phone: (505) 471-8332

LOPEZ ROOFING SERVICE

(505) 982-2700

Robert M. Strumor
Attorney at Law

ARTHUR LOPEZ
Owner & Manager

P.O. Box 1944
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Suite 300 First Interstate Plaza 150 Washington Avenue
Santa Fe, ew Mexico 87501 (505) 988-9721

ROBERT D. KRAUSE
Consulting Engineer

Santa Fe, New Mexico Telephone 983-3107
Richa rd Yates

Arch itect s, Inc.

428Sa ndoval

Santa Fe
New Mexico 8i 501
505/988-1913
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J1iClu'tUM" on the OCCa46io'1/, 0/ thefi,

SANTA FE

LIGHTS

ARCH ITECTU RAL
LIGHTING FIX TURES

IN SOUTHWEST
ADOBE STYLE

INDOOR & OUTDOOR
WALL, CEILING AND
HANGING LIGHTS,
CHANDELIERS &
GARDEN LIGH TS

FRANK WILLETT I THE SANTA FE POTTERY
323 Guadalupe Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

(505) 471 -0076 I (505) 983 -9011

DEDICATED TO QUALITY
AND SERVICE

Published bi-month ly by New Mexico Societ y of Architects, American
Institute of Architects, a non- profi t organization. Editorial Correspondence
should be addressed to Joh n P. Conron, Box 935 , Santa Fe, N. M. 87504 .
(505) 983-6948.

Editorial Policy: Opi nions expressed in all signe d articles are th ose of the
autho r and do not necessaril y represent th e offic ia l posit ion of th e pu blishing
organizati on .
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THE DESIGNERS' DESIGNER
Specia lizing in services to the creative co mmuni ty ­
architects, engineers, pract it ion ers of the visua l, literary
and performing arts.

-Typesetling

- Editing

-Illustrati on

-Exhibitry

- Cornposltes
- Bro chures

-Logos

-Visual Aids

-Print Bro kering

TypArt
925 Sixth Street Northwest, Suite 1
Albuquerque, New M exico 87102
505 -242-9207

Beauty & Performa
The Perfect Pair!

Weather Shield offers you both
in the line of quality wood windows
and steel insulated entry systems.
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~JD~ ~ f~ 1
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4201 Los Angeles , NE Albuquerque, New Mexico 87113 (505)823·2500

P.O. Drawe r FF
Las Cruces, NM 88001
505/524-3633

P.O. Box 1633
Roswell , NM 88201
505/622-1321

BUILDER 5
IIDIL@~TI[

Members :
New Mexico Concrete
Masonry Associat ion
Nat iona l Concrete
Masonry Associat ion
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